AU

AAAAAAAATAAAAAARAAANTARAA

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW No. 16
= N

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Tuesday, July 19, 2022

#1

#2

#3

#4

#5

CALLTO ORDER

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

MINUTES

DELEGATION
9:05 a.m.
9:25 a.m.
9:40 a.m.
10:00 a.m.

NEW BUSINESS

MEETING AGENDA

9:00 a.m. Grande Cache Public Service

3.1 Committee of the Whole Meeting minutes held June 21,

2022

3.2 Business Arising from the Minutes

4.1 Grande Cache Golf Course Presentation
4.2 Maskwa Medical Center Presentation
4.3 Smoky Hemp Decortication Presentation

4.4 Grande Prairie & District Chambers of Commerce

5.1 EVenture Presentation

5.2 Grande Cache Trails Planning Initiative
5.3 Ridgevalley Lagoon

5.4 Reserves Presentation

5.5 Financial Reporting

5.6 Franchise Fees

Building

Grande Cache, AB

3

19

27

45

64

68

238

275

303

313



5.7 Action List 318

#6  CLOSED SESSION

#7 ADJOURNMENT



#1:
CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT

ATTENDING

ABSENT

#2:
AGENDA

Minutes of a

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Grovedale Public Service Building
Grovedale, AB on Tuesday, June 21, 2022

Councillor Ryan Ratzlaff called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

Ward 9
Ward 8
Ward 1
Ward 2
Ward 3
Ward 4
Ward 5
Ward 6
Ward 7
Ward 8
Ward 9

Chief Administrative Officer

Director Community Services

Director, Corporate Services

Director Infrastructure & Planning
Manager Communications & Marketing
Recording Secretary

Deputy Reeve Bill Smith

Reeve Tyler Olsen

Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
Councillor Delorme

Councillor Ryan Ratzlaff
Councillor Sally Rosson (virtual)
Councillor Dave Berry
Councillor Dale Smith
Councillor Tom Burton (virtual)
Councillor Jennifer Scott
Councillor Christine Schlief
Councillor Duane Didow

Stacey Wabick
Michelle Honeyman
Ed Kaemingh

Roger Autio

Stacey Sevilla
Natalie Bartlett

MOTION: 22.06.65 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That the Tuesday, June 21, 2022, Committee of the Whole Agenda be

adopted as amended.

e Removal of United Way and Mental Wellness Matters Delegations

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott,

Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow

CARRIED



Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes June 21, 2022
M.D. of Greenview No. 16
Page 2

#3.1
COMMITTEE OF THE
WHOLE MINUTES

#3.2
BUSINESS ARISING

#4
DELEGATIONS

NORTHERN GATEWAY
PUBLIC SCHOOL
DIVISION

AB COUNSEL

MOTION: 22.06.66 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That the Minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held on Tuesday,
May 17, 2022, be adopted as presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott,
Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow

CARRIED

Councillor Didow asked about Motion 22.05.01 regarding timeframe for
information about Mountain Metis Cree Nation being brought to Council?
Roger Autio indicated that information will be brought to first Council
meeting in July.

4.0 DELEGATIONS

4.1 NORTHERN GATEWAY PUBLIC SCHOOL DIVISION

MOTION: 22.06.67 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Northern
Gateway Public School Division for information, as presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott,
Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow

CARRIED

4.2 ALBERTA COUNSEL

MOTION: 22.06.68 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from Alberta Counsel
for information, as presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott,
Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow

CARRIED

4.3 MENTAL WELLNESS MATTERS PRESENTATION

MOTION: 22.06. Moved by:

That Committee of the Whole accept the Mental Wellness Matters
presentation for information, as presented.

DELEGATION DID NOT PRESENT



Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes June 21, 2022
M.D. of Greenview No. 16
Page 3

143 HEALTHCARE
CONSULTING

WILLMORE
WILDERNESS
FOUNDATION REPORT

4.4 143 HEALTHCARE CONSULTING

MOTION: 22.06.69 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT

That Committee of the Whole accept the 143 Healthcare Consulting
presentation for information, as presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott,
Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow

CARRIED

Councillor Ratzlaff recessed meeting at 11:59 a.m.

Councillor Ratzlaff reconvened meeting at 12:49 p.m.

5.4 WILLMORE WILDERNESS FOUNDATION REPORT

MOTION: 22.06.70 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY

That Committee of the Whole accept the Willmore Wilderness Foundation
Report for information, as presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott,
Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow

CARRIED

MOTION: 22.06.71 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW

That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to direct
Administration to explore a weed control collaboration with key
stakeholders within the Willmore Wilderness and Improvement District No.
25.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief,
Councillor Didow

CARRIED
Absent: Councillor Burton



Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes June 21, 2022
M.D. of Greenview No. 16
Page 4

TINY HANDS OF HOPE-
BLOSSOMING GARDEN
OF HOPE

#5 NEW BUSINESS

GRANDE CACHE
COMMUNITY EVENT
CENTRE

4.5 TINY HANDS OF HOPE PRESENTATION — BLOSSOMING GARDEN OF
HOPE

MOTION: 22.06.72 Moved by: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from Tiny Hands of
Hope regarding the Blossoming Garden of Hope for information, as
presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief,
Councillor Didow

CARRIED
Absent: Councillor Burton

MOTION: 22.06.73 Moved by: REEVE TYLER OLSEN

That Committee of the Whole recommends to Council that Administration
prepare a report for a grant application to Tiny Hands of Hope for the June
28, 2022, Regular Council meeting.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief,
Councillor Didow

CARRIED
Absent: Councillor Burton

6.0 CLOSED SESSION

5.1 GRANDE CACHE COMMUNITY EVENT CENTRE

MOTION: 22.06.74 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation regarding the Grande
Cache Community Events Centre for information, as presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson,
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief,
Councillor Didow

CARRIED
Absent: Councillor Burton

Councillor Rosson exited meeting at 1:54 p.m.



Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes June 21, 2022
M.D. of Greenview No. 16
Page 5

2022 SPRING
COMMUNITY GRANTS

GD WATER
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
AND WATER
TREATEMENT PLANT

SUNSET HOUSE
WATERPOINT

ACTION LIST

5.2 2022 SPRING COMMUNITY GRANT REQUESTS

MOTION: 22.06.75 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW

That Committee of the Whole recommend that Council award the approved
2022 Spring Community Grants.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry,
Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow
CARRIED

Absent: Councillor Burton, Councillor Rosson

5.3 GROVEDALE WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM AND WATER TREATMENT
PLANT

MOTION: 22.06.76 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation on the Grovedale
Water Distribution System and Water Treatment Plant, for information as
presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry,
Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow

CARRIED
Absent: Councillor Burton, Councillor Rosson

5.5 SUNSET HOUSE WATERPOINT

MOTION: 22.06.77 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation regarding the Sunset
House Waterpoint for information, as presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry,
Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow
CARRIED

Absent: Councillor Burton, Councillor Rosson

5.6 ACTION LIST

MOTION: 22.06.78 Moved by: REEVE TYLER OLSEN

That Committee of the Whole accept the Action List, for information, as
presented.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry,
Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow
CARRIED

Absent: Councillor Burton, Councillor Rosson



Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes June 21, 2022
M.D. of Greenview No. 16

Page 6
#7 7.0 ADJOURNMENT
ADJOURNMENT
ADJOURN MOTION: 22.06.79 Moved by: REEVE TYLER OLSEN

That this Committee of the Whole meeting adjourn at 3:59 P.M.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry,
Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow

CARRIED
Absent: Councillor Burton, Councillor Rosson

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER CHAIR



AU

AAAAAAAATAAAAAARAAANTARAA

NS

REQUEST FOR DECISION

SUBJECT: Grande Cache Golf Course Presentation

SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION
MEETING DATE: July 21, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER:
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES DIR: MH PRESENTER:

STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS

RELEVANT LEGISLATION:
Provincial - N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) — N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the Grande Cache Golf Course presentation for information,
as presented.

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL:

Grande Cache Golf course is a not-for-profit organization that is operated by a board of Directors and will be
in attendance to provide a summary of their organization and discuss the ongoing planning and future
supports needed from the MD of Greenview.

Grande Cache golf course was awarded a Greenview grant in 2022 to support both capital and operating
initiatives.

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. The benefit to Committee of the Whole accepting the recommended motion is they will have the
opportunity to learn about the Grande Cache Golf Course operations and to ask questions prior to
reviewing a future grant request.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
Alternative #1: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION:
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion.



STAFFING IMPLICATION:
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL:
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
Inform

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL

Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions.

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC
Inform - We will keep you informed.

FOLLOW UP ACTIONS:
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion.

ATTACHMENT(S):

e PowerPoint

10






oo JOURNEY
N~

Established in 1981 by a Board of volunteers, the GCGCC was built by families, businesses and the
community as a whole. There are fond memories of family outings picking rocks, the mine and other
businesses loaning equipment and personnel to do clearing and landscaping. Essentially the efforts were
carving a golf course at the bed of a mountain.

In 2010, the course found themselves in financial difficulty and handed over the reigns to the Town of
Grande Cache for a short period. In 2012 an elected Board was put in place to manage the course on
behalf of the members, that Board and subsequently each since has been diligent in managing the
financial aspects of the course and overseeing the hired Management.




Our course offers recreational golf to both members and
general public alike. Compared to other courses in the MD of
Greenview, we remain competitive and are always looking for
ways to increase the playability while managing the financial

implications.

e e




April 14, 2017 K. Cunningham

Elevations & Average Temps ~ Regionally & Alberta

Grande Prairie

Valleyview

Hinton

Jasper

Grande Cache

Canmore

Banff

Lake Louise

2.00 - +14.1

2.10 - +14.3

-0.80 - +17.0

-0.50 - +14.7

-3.50 - +10.2

0.00 - +12.7

0.10 - +12.9

-1.40 - +11.5




The fleet of carts are
one of the biggest
detriments to the

course and the
foreseeable future.

Our fleet ranges from
Club Car’s aged 2006-
2007 and Yamaha
carts aged 2013.

Carts are both a revenue generator, rank high in providing quality customer
%'»d service and are currently costing us man-power in repairs and downtime. %




hit the ROAD
N




17



the great ES CAPE
N~

We want to work with the MD of Greenview to feature the Golf Course as a part of our tourism, an
attractant to Grande Cache and to support great community living.
We seek a partnership thatstretches beyond “today.”




AU

AAAAAAAATAAAAAARAAANTARAA

NS

REQUEST FOR DECISION

SUBJECT: Maskwa Medical Centre Presentation

SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION
MEETING DATE: June 21, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER:
DEPARTMENT: CAO SERVICES DIR: PRESENTER:
STRATEGIC PLAN: Economy LEG: SS

RELEVANT LEGISLATION:
Provincial (cite) — N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Maskwa Medical Centre for
information as presented.

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL:
The Maskwa Medical Center Canada Inc. will be in attendance to report on the progress of the Maskwa
Medical Center business plan and government approvals.

At the April 13, 2021, Regular Council Meeting, Council approved a $25,000 grant to the Maskwa Medical
Centre Inc. as well as provided a letter to the Maskwa Medical Centre in support of the cost benefit analysis
business plan submission.

The Maskwa Medical Centre (Canada) Inc. is a not-for-profit Medical Clinic with a volunteer board made up
of eleven business and focused citizens from the Grande Prairie, County of Grande Prairie and Municipal
District of Greenview regions. The mission of the Maskwa Clinic is to “provide public health care designed to
meet the specific needs of the people of the Peace Country by connecting patients to the right expertise at
the exact right time”. This project began in late 2017 and was put on hold in February 2020 while the
province dealt with COVID-19. In November 2020, the Maskwa Medical Centre continued development.
The Maskwa Medical Centre is in the process of developing a tool for the overworked General Practitioners
in the northern regions of Alberta and British Columbia to bring better timelines for diagnosis and
treatment plans of complex cases. The goal is to reduce or eliminate medical trips to Edmonton or Calgary
and keep families together during what is often the most difficult time of their lives. The Maskwa patient
pathway (see attached) will provide a faster diagnosis and will assist in keeping families in the region during
diagnosis and treatment plan states.

The Provincial Minister of Finance has directed the Maskwa Medical Centre to provide a cost benefit

analysis business plan. The business plan was scheduled to be presented to the Provincial Minister of Health
and his Ministry colleagues at Alberta Health by mid-May 2021. The next step was to obtain a clinical

19



license and make the Maskwa Medical Centre a reality. Nichols Consulting was hired to assist in submitting
a Cost Benefit Analysis business plan that aligns with the expectations of Alberta Health with the help of the
Mayo Clinic’s expertise, RedBrick will complete the business plan.

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. The benefit of accepting the presentation is that Committee of the Whole will be provided with
updated information regarding the Maskwa Medical Centre.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to amend or take no action to the recommended
motion.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION:
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion.

STAFFING IMPLICATION:
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL:
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
Inform

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL

Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions.

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC
Inform - We will keep you informed.

FOLLOW UP ACTIONS:
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion.

ATTACHMENT(S):

e Maskwa Business Plan Executive Summary

20



Bridging the Gap

An Innovative Proposal to Improve Diagnosis of Complex Medical
Conditions in Northwestern Alberta

rr
b
Submitted to: ¥ -
Government of Alberta
Submitted by: 4

Maskwa Medical Center (Canada) Inc.

July 2021 L

21



MASKEWA MEDICAL CENTER

Executive Summary

Introduction

Maskwa Medical Center (Canada) Inc. is an Alberta-based not-for-profit organization committed to playing a role in
improving the access people of the Peace Region have to the services of medical specialists for the diagnosis of
more complex medical conditions. This proposal will help advance discussions between Maskwa and provincial
government representatives to support ongoing planning for a new, world-class patient diagnostic center in Grande
Prairie.

Current Service Delivery Challenges

Patients can experience wait times at various points along the continuum of care. While much is made of the time
patients spend waiting for treatment, less considered, but still vitally important to improving health outcomes, is the
need patients have for timely access to a specialist consultation for a diagnosis.

Wait time information for appointments with specialists is sparse. The latest information available from Statistics
Canada estimated 15% to 18% of Alberta patients requiring a specialist visit for a new iliness or condition between
2009 and 2013 had to wait longer than 3 months." More recent information compiled by the Fraser Institute indicates
that the average time Alberta patients wait from referral by a general practitioner to seeing a specialist has grown
from 3.6 weeks in 1993 to 13.3 in 2020.2

Those with difficult-to-diagnose conditions can experience especially lengthy delays in receiving a diagnosis, as
they often end up in one or more repeating cycles of physician visits and diagnostic tests. When patients get caught
in these cycles, it not only takes time and puts increased demands on the health system but also leads to increased
stress and anxiety for patients and their families.

Timely access to needed health services is especially important in rural and remote regions where residents often
have higher rates of chronic disease and overall poorer health outcomes relative to others. This holds true for the
Peace Country where, when compared to the provincial average, residents have:

e lower life expectancy;

e a higher mortality rate;

e a higher rate of potential years of life lost (PYLL);

e higher mortality rates for cancer, diseases of the heart, and chronic lower respiratory disease; and
e higher prevalence of hypertension, COPD, and ischemic heart disease.

This is likely even more so the case for Indigenous residents in the region. Although Alberta Health was unable to
provide Indigenous-specific data for the Peace Country region for this proposal, the Indigenous population in
Canada generally trails the non-Indigenous population on most health indicators including certain communicable
and non-communicable diseases.

Statistics Canada Health Services Access Survey (2009-2013).
2 Waiting Your Turn: Wait Times for Health Care in Canada, 2020 Report. Fraser Institute.

Maskwa Medical Center: Proposal |
22



MASKEWA MEDICAL CENTER

Despite a greater need for health services, rural and remote regions often struggle to attract health care
professionals. This is the case in the Peace Region, where the number of internal medicine specialists per 1,000
population has persistently fallen below the provincial average. In 2019/20, the number of internal medicine
specialists per 1,000 population in the Peace Country was 0.06, compared to 0.29 for the province as a whole.
While the number of internal medicine specialists per 1,000 population has increased slightly in Alberta in recent
years, the number has either stayed the same or decreased slightly in the Peace Country.3

Over the past three years, there have been, on average, 11 internal medicine specialists providing services
exclusively or predominantly in the Peace Country region. Although some have particular areas of interest or
expertise, nearly all of them are considered to be general internists and not subspecialists. Residents of the Peace
Country often must access subspecialist services outside the region. Over the past three years, an annual average
of 1,300 patients in the Peace Country region have been referred outside the region for consultation and/or specialist
examination services in internal medicine,

In addition to there being fewer internal medicine specialists in the region relative to the population, there are other
factors that can affect the access residents have to internal medicine services and the time these specialists spend
with patients. Many of the local internists have heavy workloads and divide their time between their clinics and
providing on-call services and supporting the emergency department and ICU at the QEII hospital. In addition, it is
our understanding that most if not all local internists are compensated on a fee-for-service (FFS) basis, which is
generally viewed as offering physicians less financial incentive to spend time with patients as compared to some
alternative compensation arrangements.

Although local internists have opportunities to consult with subspecialists in Edmonton to help them with a diagnosis
and/or for a referral, these consultations are typically brief, single events and do not create an ongoing attachment
to a particular patient that is often helpful to obtaining a diagnosis for complex or difficult to diagnose medical issues.

Peace Country residents also face challenges accessing internal medicine subspecialists outside the region. There
are often relatively long wait times for appointments with subspecialists in larger centers, such as Edmonton.* In
addition, travel can be challenging, with Edmonton being four or more hours away by vehicle. These challenges are
especially difficult for patients with difficult-to-diagnose conditions as they often need to be seen more frequently by
one or more subspecialists and have series of tests to obtain an accurate diagnosis.

The Solution

The Maskwa Medical Center (Maskwa) will be an innovative not-for-profit medical center that will bring together top
specialists and subspecialists in Alberta and elsewhere to provide timely diagnoses and treatment planning for
patients with complex medical conditions or diseases that can be difficult to diagnose. The Center will be based in
Grande Prairie, on Treaty 8 territory. It will be operated by Maskwa Medical Center (Canada) Inc., an organization

8 This does not include specialists who are primarily based elsewhere in Alberta but periodically offer in-person
services at facilities in the region or specialists from other parts of Alberta who provide telehealth services to the
region. The population estimate used for this calculation does not include communities in northwestern Alberta
and northeastern B.C. that are outside of the Peace Country but whose residents also periodically access
internal medicine services in the Grande Prairie area.

4 It was reported that some residents travel to Edmonton to visit an emergency department in order to be seen by
a subspecialist.

Maskwa Medical Center: Proposal i
23



MASKEWA MEDICAL CENTER

led by residents in the Peace Region. As it becomes established, the Center will be affiliated with the Mayo Clinic,
a world-renowned health center in the United States.

The Service Delivery Model
Maskwa’s service model will be unique in Alberta and Canada. Key elements of the model include:
e Relaxed, one-on-one time with Maskwa staff, including the specialist Physician Lead.

e Involving one or more Alberta-based internal medicine specialists along with specialists at the Mayo Clinic with
relevant expertise and experience as members of panels tailored to the specific circumstances of each patient.
Specialist panels will collaborate in diagnosing patients and developing treatment plans, along with patients’
family physicians. AHS staff may also be involved in treatment planning.

e In-person closure visits will be held, bringing together the patient (and possibly family members), the Maskwa
staff most closely involved in the patient’s diagnosis and treatment planning, and the patient’s family physician.

e Maskwa staff will follow-up with patients and their family physicians at appropriate intervals. The information
and feedback obtained during the follow up period will be an integral part of the Center's continuous
improvement process.

The Maskwa Medical Center will have close linkages to and relationships with family physicians, AHS, and local
diagnostic service providers. The Center’s integration into the health system will be facilitated by Connect Care.

Maskwa will initially focus on serving people in the Peace Country in northwestern Alberta.® Over time, the Center
is expected to receive referrals for patients from across northern Alberta, British Columbia, the Yukon and Northwest
Territories and more broadly across Alberta and elsewhere in Canada. The patients that will be referred to the
Center are expected to include those who meet one or more of the following criteria:

e have multiple or complex medical conditions;
e are experiencing symptoms that family physicians or other specialists have been unable to diagnose; and/or

e would benefit from the expertise and experience of a Maskwa Center specialist panel for a second opinion or
advice on treatment planning.

The Center will also provide a welcoming environment for First Nations and Métis people to access the expertise
of medical specialists and have Indigenous healing practices taken into consideration in treatment plans if they
choose.

Staffing

It is anticipated that the Center will have a team of four staff to begin with, increasing to eight in the first full year of
operation and twelve in the second full year of operation. Maskwa'’s internal medicine specialists will be highly
experienced and respected members of the Alberta College of Physicians and Surgeons with strong relationships
within Alberta’s medical community.

5 This includes residents of the City of Grande Prairie, residents residing within the boundaries of the County of
Grande Prairie and MD of Greenview, and residents in and around the communities of Grande Cache, Fox
Creek, Beaverlodge, Valleyview, Falher, High Prairie, Peace River, Fairview, and Spirit River.

Maskwa Medical Center: Proposal i
24



MASKEWA MEDICAL CENTER

The number and type of specialists and subspecialists on the individualized patient panels will vary from case to
case. The intent will always be to bring the best available expertise together to provide patients with a quick and
accurate diagnosis and appropriate treatment plan. These specialists will be contracted by Maskwa on an as-
required basis.

Finances

Maskwa will be a publicly funded, not-for-profit medical center funded under an innovative arrangement with the
Government of Alberta. There will be no fees charged to patients.

Expenses for the Center are expected to increase from approximately $1 million during the first six months of
operations to just under $4 million by the second full year of operations.® The financial performance of the Center
will be overseen by the Maskwa Medical Center (Canada) Inc. board of directors and the Center will be accountable
to the Government of Alberta for its billing to the AHCIP for the services of physicians and its use of other public
funds to provide services. Detailed budget estimates are provided in Appendix B.

Alignment with Government Priorities

Maskwa Medical Center operations will be closely aligned with a number of stated Government of Alberta and
Alberta Health Service outcomes and objectives. Specifically:

Government of Alberta Objectives

e A modernized, seamless health care system built around the needs of individuals, families, caregivers, and
communities, and supported by competent, accountable health professionals

e A safe, person-centred, quality health system that provides the most effective care for each tax dollar spent

e The health and well-being of all Albertans is supported and improved, and health inequities among population
groups are reduced

e We will strive to improve health outcomes through clinical best practices with a focus on wait times and access
Alberta Health Services Objectives

e We will strive to make it easier for patients to move between primary, specialty and hospital care

e We will work to improve health outcomes of Indigenous People in areas where AHS has influence

e We will work to improve efficiencies through implementation of operational and clinical best practices, while
maintaining or improving quality and safety

Cost-Benefit Analysis

To better understand the potential net benefits of the Maskwa Medical Center to the province of Alberta, an
independent third-party (Nichols Applied Management Inc.) adopted a Cost-Benefit Analysis (CBA) approach to
evaluate the total social benefits and costs of the Center’s proposed services. In the case of the Maskwa Medical

6 This does not include cost of services related to external diagnostic testing, contracted specialist(s), and Mayo
Clinic specialists

Maskwa Medical Center: Proposal iV
25



MASKEWA MEDICAL CENTER

Center, there is insufficient data to complete a quantitative CBA. What is provided is an examination of potential
costs and benefits associated with the Center as compared to the existing system in a qualitative CBA framework.

In terms of costs, there are two primary pathways through which the proposed Center is expected to cost key
stakeholders. First, it is proposed that the Government of Alberta will be funding the Center through an innovative
arrangement with Maskwa, costing approximately $6.5 million by the second full year of operations (2024).7 Second,
additional costs associated with the Center may accrue to patients who must travel from elsewhere in the province
to access the Center relative to the current system. In terms of benefits, there are two primary pathways through
which the proposed Center is expected to benefit key stakeholders in the province. Arguably the largest benefit
associated with the Center is the potential for improved timeliness of diagnosis and treatment planning for patients
with complex medical conditions or diseases, potentially reducing their risk of mortality or morbidity as compared to
the current system. The second benefit associated with the Center is the potential for avoided costs related to
diagnosis and treatment planning for complex medical cases within the existing provincial health system.

Without the monetization and appropriate discounting of all or most of the costs and benefits listed above, we are
not able to conclude whether the Center would represent a net benefit to the province. We can, however, provide
context for the potential benefits relative to the estimated costs of the clinic using the value of a statistical life (VSL),
a measure of the trade-off between income and the risk of mortality.® For example, should the Center provide
benefits that reduces the risk of mortality for its patients by 0.5%, given a VSL of $8 million the Center would provide
over $27 million in benefits during its second full year of operations when it is assumed it will serve approximately
690 patients, as compared to the $6.5 million in estimated costs for the year. It is also worth noting that as it becomes
established, the Center will be affiliated with the Mayo Clinic, a world-renowned health center that is successfully
operating in the United States and elsewhere.

The Request

This proposal is intended to help advance discussions between Maskwa Medical Center (Canada) Inc. and
provincial government representatives to support ongoing planning for the Center. To that end, Maskwa Medical
Center (Canada) Inc. representatives are seeking a commitment from the Government of Alberta to work
with us in both designing an optimal service delivery model and ensuring our Center aligns with all
necessary health system requirements. It is our intention to support, and not supplant, the current health
services in the region. We will ultimately be seeking public funding to establish and operate the Center. The
precise nature and amount of funding will be determined as part of ongoing discussions between Maskwa and
Government of Alberta representatives.

7 This includes expenses associated with the Maskwa Center as well as cost of services related to external
diagnostic testing, contracted specialist(s), and Mayo Clinic specialists (see Appendix B).

8 The Treasury Board of Canada has suggested that the VSL in Canada ranges from about $4.8 million to $16.0
million and recommends that analysts conducting a CBA use a mean value of $8.0 million

Maskwa Medical Center: Proposal V
26



AU

AAAAAAAATAAAAAARAAANTARAA

NS

REQUEST FOR DECISION

SUBJECT: Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. (SHDL)

SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION
MEETING DATE: July 19, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER: SK
DEPARTMENT: AGRICULTURE DIR: MH PRESENTER:
STRATEGIC PLAN: Economy LEG: SS

RELEVANT LEGISLATION:
Provincial (cite) — N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) — N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
MOTION: That the Committee of the Whole accept the Smoky Hemp Decortication presentation for
information, as presented.

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL:
Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. will provide a presentation on establishing a hemp decortication facility that
will be at the centre of a hemp fibre and hurd value-added processing cluster.

Presenter Avis Gagne recognized the immense potential and opportunity provided by growing and processing
industrial hemp after attending the 1st Canada International Hemp Fibre Processing Symposium in 2018. In
the intervening three years, she has worked to promote, educate, identify opportunities, markets, and
encourage investment in the emerging hemp industry. Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd is committed to
making hemp a successful cornerstone of hemp fibre value-added chain in Northern Alberta.

Currently, Alberta has three decortication plants, all around the Edmonton area.

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. The benefit of accepting the presentation is to confirm receipt of the Council update on the Smoky
Hemp Decortication Ltd. Facility that is being constructed in the Donnelly area in the Municipal District
of Smoky River.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
Alternative #1: N/A

27



FINANCIAL IMPLICATION:
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion.

STAFFING IMPLICATION:
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL:
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
Inform

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL

Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions.

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC
Inform - We will keep you informed.

FOLLOW UP ACTIONS:
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion.

ATTACHMENT(S):

e Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. —July 19, 2022
Presentation

28



Growing our Futuwre

29
Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022



OUR TEAM

Avis Gagné, Chief Daniel Labrecque, (Corey Keith, Diane Chiasson, Director Normand Boulet, Director
Executive Offlcer Director Operations Director Finance Sales & Marketing Agricultural Operations

OUR ADVISORS

Frangois C6té, Director
Quality Control

Darcy Boisvert, Scott Exner, Legal Trevor Pizzey, Engineering Steve Banks, Transportation
Agronomy & Logistics

30
Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022




Years of work

* In 2017, the Conseil de développement économique de I'Alberta
(CDEA) received funding from the CARES program to explore
introducing decortication facilities in Northern Alberta

* In 2018, Smoky River Regional Economic Development (SRRED)
received funding from the CARES program to do a Business Case for a
10 tonne per hour facility

* In 2020, SRRED received funding from the CARES program to develop
a supply chain for the hemp industry and create a hemp cluster

Thank you to

31

Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022



OUR
ADVANTAGE

* The regionis in the 55th Parallel.
Producers and crops in our agriculture-
intense region are perfectly situated to
benefit from long daylight hours, more
so than any other agricultural region in
the world.

e Our long days and cool nights result
in very tall hemp with stalks perfectly
suited for fibre and hurd production.

32
Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022



Smoky Hemp Decortication will process
hemp stalk to Bast Fibre and Hurd

‘ Bast Fibre

4

Hurd

Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022



Developing a new industry
by
Creating a supply chain

Secondary
Manufacturing

Specialize
Services

Hemp
Decortication
Facility

Environmental Greener
Benefits product

34

Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022



35

We have

* A License to grow hemp

* Letters of Intent from
customers indicating they
will purchase sufficient
volumes to take all of the
fiber and hurd we can
produce during the first 5
years.

e A Collaboration Agreement
with a Canadian hempcrete
company.




Decortication facility in the province

In operation

* BioComposites Group in Drayton
Valley — Capacity % tonne per
hour

* Alberta Hemp Works in Barrheard —
Capacity % tonne per hour

36



Decortication facility in the province
coming in operation

e Canadian Rockies Hemp in Bruderheim - Capacity
10 tonne per hour —in operation soon

* INCA Renew Tech in the south of the province -
Capacity 10 tonne per hour

* Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd in Donnelly —
Capacity 3 tonne per hour — in operation summer
2023

37



New Technology
Equipment

* Process short & long fibre
option by changing a

component in the equipment

* Minimum capacity of 3 metric
tonne per hour

 Demonstration plant for
Canada & US

Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022

38



Growing ouwr Fuluwre

A decortication facility in the region will

For all the
regions

-

39

Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022



SHDL

Is projecting to
be in operation
by summer
2023

* Building construction
Aug. 2022

* Signing equipment
contract Sept. 2022

* Profitable by 2025

* Cost of the project
$6.5M

Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022

40



Sources of funding

As of today, the co-founders' commitment to the project is $683,000.

gllaszsol.?éshare offering — 75,000 shares for a total value of $750,000 starting July 2022 to August

Class A share offering — 200,000 shares for a total value of $2M starting October 1, 2022 to
December 18, 2022

Class A share offering — 180,000 shares for a total value of $1.8M starting February 1, 2023 to
March 31, 2023

We are also targeting Provincial & Federal programs

* Emerging Opportunities under CAP program for $500,000
* Jobs and Growth program from PrairiesCan $S1.5M loan without interest
 Agi-Food and Bioindustrial Innovation Program (ABIP) for up to $500,000

41
Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022



What MD of Greenview can do to help us ?



The only
impossible
journey is the
onhe you hever
begin

Tony Robbins

43
Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022



QUESTIONS?

Contact

Avis Gagné, CEO
ceo@smokyhempdecortation.com
Or visit
www.smokyhempdecortication.com

44
Copyright — Smoky Hemp Decortication Ltd. 2022


mailto:ceo@smokyhempdecortation.com
http://www.smokyhempdecortication.com/

AU

AAAAAAAATAAAAAARAAANTARAA

NS

REQUEST FOR DECISION

SUBJECT: Grande Prairie & District Chambers of Commerce

SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION
MEETING DATE: July 19, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER:
DEPARTMENT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIR: PRESENTER: KT
STRATEGIC PLAN: Economy LEG: SS

RELEVANT LEGISLATION:
Provincial (cite) — N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) — N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Grande Prairie & District
Chamber of Commerce regarding a Regional Workforce Development Strategy for information, as
presented.

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL:

The Grande Prairie & District Chamber of Commerce Regional Workforce Development Strategy includes
targeted actions aimed at ensuring there are enough workers with the right skills and supports to drive strong
economic growth across the Region. This strategy, which will be implemented over the next five years, will
guide a cooperative and integrative response to workforce development across the region.

Grounded in two years of extensive research and consultation, the community-driven strategy is the result
of a strong collaboration led by the Grande Prairie & District Chamber of Commerce in partnership with the
Greenview, City of Grande Prairie, County of Grande Prairie, Northwestern Polytechnic and Alberta Labour
and Immigration. Ove the past two years, nearly 800 community stakeholders provided feedback and insights
to support the strategy’s development.

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. The benefit of accepting the presentation is to confirm receipt of the Committee of the Whole update
on the Regional Workforce Development Strategy.
2. The benefit of accepting the presentation is that Committee of the Whole will have the opportunity
to obtain a better understanding of the Workforce Development findings and current gaps.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
Alternative #1: N/A

45



FINANCIAL IMPLICATION:
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion.

STAFFING IMPLICATION:
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL:
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
Inform

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL

Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions.

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC
Inform - We will keep you informed.

FOLLOW UP ACTIONS:
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion.

ATTACHMENT(S):

e Grande Prairie & District Chamber of Commerce Regional Workforce Development Strategy
Presentation.

46



Chamber of AN
Commerce h!

GRANDE PRAIRIE & DISTRICT

Regional Workforce
Development Strategy



Acknowledgements

48

\_
Job seekers

Chamber of

Northwestern Polytechnic Commerce

Members of Grande Prairie &

District Chamber of Commerce
Municipal governments
Provincial government
Employment service agencies
Community agencies
Indigenous communities

Public administration and agencies



Regional Workforce
Development
Partnership

E

'
Chamber of
Commerce




\.
THE REGION Chhmb‘f

Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

* City of Grande Prairie

* County of Grande Prairie

* Municipal District of Greenview
* Town of Beaverlodge

* Town of Fox Creek

* Town of Valleyview

* Town of Sexsmith

* Town of Wembley

* Greenview Co-ops and Enterprises
* Horse Lake First Nation
e Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation




PURPOSE OF THE
STRATEGY

=

l‘
Chamber of
Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

To guide a coordinated

and collaborative approach
to workforce development in
the Region over the next
five years.




REGIONAL LABOUR
MARKET NEEDS
ASSESSMENT

Significant gaps revealed

Access to Quality Jobs
Critical Infrastructure and
Programming

Equal Access to Opportunity
Quantifying the Labour Gap
Hard to Find Skills

Training

Chamber of
Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR




REGIONAL TARGET
SECTOR STUDY

1.

Renewable Energy and Clean
Technologies
. Forestry and Wood Product

Manufacturing

. Health Care and Life Sciences
. Upstream and Downstream

Chemical Product Manufacturing

. Agriculture and Food Processing
. Transportation, Logistics and

Warehousing

Chamber of
Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR




TARGET SECTOR PROFILES

6 Standalone profiles were created and are available for use

®



REGIONAL WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY

* A “roadmap” providing direction
and tangible actions

Strategically helps meet
employment demands, establish
a skilled and resilient workforce
for today and the future

Taps into opportunities to drive a
competitive environment across
the Region

Chamber of
Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR




CONSULTATION PROCESS

Labour Market Needs
Assessment

Consultations
Sept & Oct 2020

Virtual Focus Groups
December 2021

In Person Strategic
Directions and Draft

Regional Workforce

Strategy Consultation Development Strategy

February 2022 Complete
April 2022

56

E

l‘
Chamber of
Commerce

GRANDE PRAIRIE & DISTRICT

Virtual Working

Session
January 2022



=

l‘
Chamber of
Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

Formalize and strengthen the existing

GOAL #1 partnership that has been in place
since the inception of the Strategy.

57



E

l‘
Chamber of
Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

Attract and retain talent to support
GOAL #2 local business and address workforce

gaps.

58



GOAL #3

=

l‘
Chamber of
Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

Build partnerships and collaboration
to support the attraction and
retention of talent, skills development

and training.

59



E

l‘
Chamber of
Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

Celebrate and promote the Region as
GOAL #4 a great place to live and work.

60



SUMMARY

Chamber of

s . Commerce
This five-year Regional Workforce ~  &waess

Development Strategy, based on evidence
collected through extensive research,

includes focused and achievable actions
that:

= Address attraction and retention gaps
and opportunities;

= Address knowledge and skills gaps
between the current workforce and
future needs; and

= Highlight and promote the Region’s
livability and vitality and quality-of-life
assets.

61



Chamber of
Commerce

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

= Execute Goal 1 - Formalize
Partnership;

NEXT STEPS

= Develop a 3 year funding
request; and

= Strategically achieve the
remaining 3 goals.



o N
| A

w: https://www.grandeprairiechamber.com/Ia

bour-market-study/ Cha m ber Of
Commerce

GRANDE PRAIRIE & DISTRICT

e: tanya@gpchamber.com

Connecting Business. Creating Opportunity.



AU

AAAAAAAATAAAAAARAAANTARAA

NS

REQUEST FOR DECISION

SUBJECT: Site Location for Electric Vehicle Infrastructure

SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION
MEETING DATE: July 19, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER:
DEPARTMENT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIR: MAV PRESENTER: KT
STRATEGIC PLAN: Economy LEG: SS

RELEVANT LEGISLATION:
Provincial (cite) — N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) — N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation on Electric Vehicle Infrastructure as
Information, as presented.

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL:

Electric Vehicles (EVs) are becoming increasingly popular and, due to government policy and manufacturer
support, will become a major share of all vehicles sold in North America. As a component of the market early
adopters of EVs and general purchasers of new vehicles trend towards the wealthiest component of society.
Having a network of EV charging stations opens our region up to tourism by these wealthier individuals,
having a positive effect on our ability to pull tourism into our region by removing the barriers to that
population. A letter of support of the selected locations is required to apply for grants to move forward with
the project.

In the spring of 2020 Greenview was approached by the Town of Edson to create an advisory committee for
electric vehicle infrastructure, to link Northwest Alberta to the already operating sites in Southern Alberta
and British Columbia (BC). With Greenview Council approving Greenview to be an active member on this
advisory committee, other municipalities joined as well. EVentures Northwest AB is made up of 8 different
municipalities: Greenview, City of Edmonton, City of Grande Prairie, Town of Edson, Town of Whitecourt,
Town of Hinton, Town of Drayton Valley and the Town of Rocky Mountain House. All these municipalities
want the opportunity to be apart of a large collaboration partnership tying into the South project, Peaks to
Prairies and BC's projects, Accelerate Kootenay’s and the new Hwy 16 project.

EVentures is an innovative partnership to establish a regional approach to connecting urban and rural
communities in Northwestern Alberta with an electric transportation network and address the significant gap
in electric vehicle charging infrastructure that currently exists in the region. The network will support and
promote tourism and economic development in Northwest Alberta and overall, in Alberta.

64



This is an opportunity to add to the types of tourists that would and could explore Greenview. As well as,
creating new opportunities to support small business within Greenview that could see the uptake of new
travels stopping in or around Greenview communities.

The reason these opportunities exist is zero emission vehicles (ZEV) hit an important milestone in 2021, with
ZEVs comprising 5.2% of all new motor vehicles registered. There has been an increase of 6.5% of new ZEVs
registered in 2021 from 2020 with estimates of this number continuing to raise for 2022, especially with gas
prices continuing to climb.

Up and beyond these stats Greenview Administration receives multiple enquiries on charging infrastructure
from ratepayers and regional residents on an ongoing basis. Most of these enquiries consist of wondering if
Greenview will be getting EV infrastructure and educating administration on granting opportunities that are
available. Currently most of these enquires are looking to travel and tour Grande Cache, other enquiries are
getting travellers from Edmonton and back. There is an “EV” group, between Grande Prairie and Edmonton,
that will allow travellers to use their personal charging stations. When Greenview has this infrastructure,
Greenview can then welcome and promote these types of tourism.

EVenture has been looking for funding opportunities since August 2020 to fund the 22 host locations for the
charging infrastructure that covers approximately 160,000 square kilometers. EVenture has contacted the
Government of Alberta multiple times, in hopes of getting the same support as the Peaks to Prairies project
received back in 2018. As such, EVentures continues to keep Ministry of Transportation informed.

EVenture has recently been informed of changes to the NRCan funding. NRCan Zero Emissions Vehicle
Infrastructure Program (ZEVIP) is open for applications now until August 11, 2022. Applications are being
accepted up to $5 Million. For EVenture to be successful at this funding opportunity each municipality
requires an approved site location letter. Greenview has included more site locations than we will be
receiving infrastructure due to the chance of electric line issues, or placement issues. Through the EVenture
project, Greenview is looking at receiving 3 to 5 electric vehicle charging stations.

The idea behind this EVenture Northwest AB project is to find full funding for the project, then find an electric
company that not only will provide finances to upkeep this infrastructure but will also be responsible for
maintaining, repairing, operating, and owning these units. EVenture is currently in search of this electric
company and will report when this is known.

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:

1. That Committee of the Whole is provided up to date information regarding Evehicle charging
infrastructure throughout Greenview assisting in the EV Charging gap that does not allow all tourists
to travel freely throughout Alberta.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

65



ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:

Alternative #1: That Greenview does not participate with EVenture anymore and Greenview can explore
other means of Zero Emission infrastructure. However, at this time Administration does not have any
recommendations for alternative infrastructure.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION:
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion.

STAFFING IMPLICATION:
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL:
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
Inform

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL

Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions.

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC
Inform - We will keep you informed.

FOLLOW UP ACTIONS:
Administration will provide a site location approval letter to EVenture for NRCan application.

ATTACHMENT(S):

e EVenture Information sheet

66



eventure

PROJECT UPDATE
8 22 160,000km?

%

ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Representatives from City of EHmonton, Municipal District of Greenview,

i _ iy ; : Indigenous Partners
Advisory Host covered by the network City of Grande Prairie, Town of Whitecourt, Town of Edson, Town of Hinton, _ _
Committee Communities ] Town of Rocky Mountain House and Town of Drayton Valley came Enoch Cree Nation & Alexis Nakota
Community of Alberta’s COLLABORATION together in March 2020 with the intent to develop aregional strategy Soux Nation have expressed
Members total land area enhanced tourism and economic development via an electric vehicle interest in site hosting.

charging station network. Representatives from each community form the I —
EVenture Advisory Comittee (AC).

WHAT'S HAPPENED?
LEGEND

9 Proposed EVenture EV Charging Station

, Existing Fast Charging Station

SEED FUNDING
Each ACmember committed $5,000in Q
9 9 v seed funding for network design and O 2
outreach and engagement with private

Beaxérertodge Grande PREPA RATION

Prairie and public sector to fund network
v 9 implementation (~$3 Million)

9 Whitecourt

9
? o o Vg..
Q

CEA is facilitating this scope of work and is exploring public funding opportunities :

® NRCan ZEVIP and Municipal Climate Change Action Centre (MCCAC), both of
which have limitations on total funding allotment and eligible costs.

® Ongoing conversations with Government of Alberta, Western Economic
Diversification and the private sector.

WHERE ARE WE GOING?

{ Grande v
: Cache

FUNDING

NETWORK DESIGN Confirm project funding (targeted $3 Million) for implementation of full
' v 9 The initial network design has been completed (see network.
o Jasper the draft network at left). Locations were selected to RFP
Eastern end v 9 reflect local climate, terrain and vehicle technology. Host competitive RFP for DCFC supply, install and owner/operator:
S The 20+ initial locations will include both Level 3 fast ® External owner/operator alleviates small communities from the burden
of ”;\Toﬁlharge . £\ 9 ' Red Deer charging and Level 2 stations. Final site selection at THENETWORK and liability of owning and maintaining equipment while allowing them
torth 9 9 ' each location will consider criteria to maximize to gain maximum co-benefits from the investment.
' - co-benefits for local businesses and attractions. ® Aggregating the supply and install creates efficiencies in the process.
g?::‘eeifc‘zggs L 2 L ] Closing the Gap: EVenture network connects the region NETWORK IMPLEMENTATION
’ to southern Alberta and northern BC where stations are . L ..
Kootenays . . L ® Goal is a 1-year timeline: same as Peaks to Prairies.
already operating or under construction, linking key
Network. : Calgary ® Final site selection will be collaborative, with the local host community.

drivable markets across NW Alberta

@ Sites will be selected to maximize local co-benefits to small businesses,

Northern end of Peaksto and to promote visitation to local attractions.

Prairies Charging Network

67


http://peakstoprairies.ca

AU

AAAAAAAATAAAAAARAAANTARAA

NS

REQUEST FOR DECISION

SUBJECT: Grande Cache Trail Planning Initiative — A Vision for Trails on Public Lands
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION
MEETING DATE: July 19, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER: KG
DEPARTMENT: RECREATION DIR: MH PRESENTER: KG

STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS

RELEVANT LEGISLATION:
Provincial (cite) — N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) — N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Grande Cache Trail Committee
for information, as presented.

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL:

This presentation will give an overview of the Grande Cache Trail Planning Initiative in which Greenview
Administration has been actively participating in. Greenview has not made any financial or in-kind
commitments in the completion and/or field work related to this exercise.

Alberta is committed to responsible outdoor recreation and natural resource stewardship. Outdoor
recreation on Alberta’s Crown lands, including parks and protected areas, is an important contributor to
quality of life. It helps support healthy lifestyles, develops connections to and with the environment, and
provides opportunities to celebrate our heritage and culture.

Public Land Management Vision

Alberta’s Government has adopted a common-sense approach to Crown land management that finds the
right balance between conservation, recreation, and economic use. The Alberta Crown Land Vision
establishes an approach to protect the environment while recognizing that recreation, economic use, and
conservation can and should support each other. It commits to how outdoor recreation is managed across all
Crown lands to ensure there is a range of sustainable recreation opportunities for Albertans into the future.
To meet this vision, Alberta’s Government is committed to updating legislation, working with partnerships,
and promoting sustainable use of trails and recreational areas. The new approach promotes working and
planning together to meet diverse goals and listening to stakeholder and community perspectives to
incorporate in Crown land management.

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:

68



1. The benefit of the recommended action is that the Committee of the Whole will be informed on the
Grande Cache Trails Planning Initiative.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended action.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
Alternative #1: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION:
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion.

STAFFING IMPLICATION:
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL:
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
Consult

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
Consult - To obtain public feedback on analysis, alternatives and/or decisions.

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

Consult - We will keep you informed, listen to and acknowledge concerns and aspirations, and provide
feedback on how public input influenced the decision

FOLLOW UP ACTIONS:
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion.

ATTACHMENT(S):

e Grande Cache Trails Planning Initiative — PowerPoint
e Grande Cache Trails Planning Initiative — A Vision for Public Lands

69



Classification: Protected A

70



The Challenge

* Ecological concerns
* Trail sustainability
* Visitor Experience

e Recreation-based tourism
readiness

Classification: Protected A

71



Planning Context

Key Policy Direction

« Balancing recreation, conservation and economic
development on these landscapes;

» Effective Crown land management is about working
and planning together to meet diverse goals;

« Focusing on outcomes and reducing red tape;

« Sustainable funding and partnerships for
recreation;

» Aclear, understandable system for land use.

72

Classification: Protected A



Classification: Protected A

Designated trails are a key component of sustainable
outdoor recreation that contribute to positive
environmental, economic and social outcomes and
individual well-being;

A trail management planning process will consider the
many land uses and values on the landscape;

Establish and manage designated trails to support
desirable user experiences, conservation of
landscapes and protection of the environment, in
concert with other enactments;

Recognize the cultural and historical significance of
trails;

Enable collaborative partner participation in trail

management and encourage shared stewardship by
all users of public land.

73

Trails Act



Greenview’s Strategic Plan 2022 - 2025

* Priority #4 in Greenview’s Strategic Plan 2022 — 2025 speaks to Culture &
Social Services. Recreation, Tourism and Economic Development all have
priority seating at Council’s table.

e Goal #4 within priority #4 lays out the pathway to Council and
Administrations commitment to a Trail Planning Initiative. Greenview
heavily invests in recreation, thus having a direct, positive impact on
residents, neighboring communities and visitors. Outdoor recreation is
part of this investment.

* Greenview has established a solid commitment in supporting a healthy
lifestyle for residents and visitors in our communities.

74

Classification: Protected A



Goal 4: Support and
maintain recreational
opportunities

* As Greenview expands the Hamlet of
Grande Cache Trail Network surrounding
the Hamlet a need for connectivity
outside of the boundaries is important.

* Through the continued and collaborative
effort of our partnership the resources
and commitments to ensure a healthy
trail management plan is created, future
capital infrastructure and maintenance
planning is developed and a vision for all
Recreational opportunities is a priority.

 Greenview will continue to promote,
grow and develop not only the existing
networks in place but will look to the
future of being good stewards on the land
and future development.

Classification: Protected A



Intent of this Work

* Address ecosystem values, Indigenous
values, and visitor experience.

e Support planning and trail
designation, design and sustainability,
and investment in the Grande Cache
area.

* Diverse working group co-chaired by
AEP and Greenview.

76

Classification: Protected A



Engagement Process

* Working group established
representing a broad array of
recreation user types and interests

e Terms of reference

* Individual interviews and
participatory online mapping

* Focus group discussions

Classification: Protected A



What We Learned

Enhance the trails experience and address
sustainability and ecological issues

Provide a diversity of trail use experiences (OHV
and non), including a looped system

Connect trails to each other and Grande Cache

Develop signature trail experiences to attract
visitors and support local economy

Ensure visitors have access to friendly
accommodations, amenities and services in
Grande Cache

Provide memorable first impression through
signage and staging areas, and ensure
consistency in messaging

Improve and sustain trail management across
the area

Classification: Protected A

78



Outcomes

* Inventory, classification and assessment of OHV
and non-OHV trails

* |dentifies ecological values and risks related to
trail-based recreation

* Evaluates trail based visitation patterns

* |dentifies visitor experience and provides trail
management recommendations

* |dentifies priority markets and assesses recreation-
based tourism readiness

* Framework for future partnership and
collaboration

79

Classification: Protected A



Ecological Values

Caribou
Mountain goats
Bighorn sheep
Grizzly bears
Wolverine

Native trout and other fish
species

Barred owl and other bird
species

Moose, elk and deer
Plants and invertebrates

Classification: Protected A

80



Historic and Cultural Values

* Indigenous use
areas (burial,
ceremonial,
medicinal plants),
archaeological
sites,
paleontological
sites, and historic
structures

81

Classification: Protected A



Other Land Uses

* Forestry, coal exploration
and mining, petroleum
industry, sand and gravel,
transmission lines, roads,
and tourism.

* Some trails cross
dispositions which can
impact public safety, land
use conditions, result in
trespass or vandalism,
etc.

Classification: Protected A

82



Trail Uses by Type

Classification: Protected A



Trails by Recreation Setting

Classification: Protected A



Trails by Natural Sub-Region



Connections to Grande Cache



Classification: Protected A

87



Classification: Protected A

88



Classification: Protected A

89



Classification: Protected A

90



Next Steps

We will develop and maintain trails and related
infrastructure in ways that are appropriate to
the ecological, Indigenous and social values

Trail management objectives and designations,
including restrictions where necessary

Construction, maintenance, reclamation and
monitoring

Education and enforcement, including
appropriate wayfinding and interpretive
signhage

Partnership agreements
Supporting recreation-based tourism

Classification: Protected A

91



Davin Tarant-Ambler Mountain, alltrails.com

MAY 2022

GRANDE CACHE
TRAIL PLANNING
L IRRV-NRAA S

A Vision for Trails on
Public Lands



Christian Phillips-Ambler Mountain, alltrails.com



LAND
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to acknowledge the Land as the source of all life, and our
gratefulness for this. We would like to honour and acknowledge the

deep connections Indigenous and Metis Peoples have to this Land, over
thousands of years. They have shaped the Land and the Land has shaped
them. This connection has also shaped who we are as Canadians and
Albertans, and we are grateful for this. We also would like to honour and
acknowledge the Elders, past, present and future for keeping their cultures
alive and maintaining connections to the Land. We say this as an act of
reconciliation to honour the generations of First Nations and Métis Peoples
for their rich contributions to our lives, and pledge to walk with Indigenous
and Metis Peoples together, in order to build a prosperous future with
mutual respect and friendship.

o)
2
>
z
o
m
»
0
I
m
-
P
>
=
)
2
>
z
Z
z
®
z
d
3
<
m
>
<
@
o
z
-
o
sl
—
T
2
=
o)
o
z
T
c
@
C
9}
e
>
z
o
o




Angie Logan-Ambler Mountain, alltrails.com

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

A plan of this scope requires the sharing of ideas, passions, and input from
the different individuals and groups in the Grande Cache Crown Land trails
network. Development of this plan was a collaborative undertaking and
would not have been possible without the significant involvement and
expertise from the members of the Grande Cache Trails Working Group,
representatives from the Aseniwuche Winewak Nation, Mountain Métis,
local and provincial government experts, and those who are passionate
about the future of Crown Land trails in the region. Whether it was sharing
input during one of the workshops, taking part in interviews, or reviewing
the database and the report, we wish to truly thank everyone for helping to
shape the future of the Grande Cache region’s Crown land trails and trail-
based visitor economy.

Thank you!

RC Strategies

[rcs|

0)
a
z
<
—
Q
|
D
>
o
z
o
"
=
<
@
'_
x
O
8
z
o
0
>
<
i
2
'—
<
E
z
o
z
z
z
<
.
o
E
<
P>
'_
w
I
o
<
o
w
Q
z
<
o
o




96



Jason Symon Volcano Peak, alltrails.com

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

The vistas, landscape, history, and cultures of Grande Cache are
powerful attractive forces to bring visitors to the region. As successful
“Trail Towns” around the globe have shown, good trails can literally
and figuratively be the pathways to activating successful local tourism
economies.

Many of the necessary ingredients for successful trails and a successful
local trail economy already exist in the region. It is however, much too
early to turn on the oven or to call the guests to the dinner. To continue
the analogy, significant effort must be also be made to settle on the
menu, repair or acquire appropriate kitchen equipment, assemble
missing ingredients, choose the preferred recipes, divide the duties, and
to prepare the meal, the atmosphere, and the place settings before the
region can effectively and sustainably welcome trail visitors.

This document, developed with the help of a diverse Working Group,
summarizes the planning context, current conditions, and future
possibilities for trails in the region. Using leading practices, it provides
an honest and realistic overview of the condition of our current

trail assets, and it provides many detailed recommendations for the
Municipal District of Greenview, the Government of Alberta, businesses,
and other organizations to consider if there is meaningful interest in
addressing some of the issues around trails and trail use. It also provides
a framework to capitalize on the significant potential for responsible trail
development to be a regenerative economic driver for the region.

98

The recommendations in this document are not a plan, but they can
inform plans. Many can be transcribed directly into other planning
initiatives (e.g. Sub-regional Land Use Framework Plans). Others can

be implemented immediately with appropriate support and authority.
Whether implemented in whole or in part, all have the potential to
advance the social, environmental, and economic benefits that a
quality trail system can provide. Considering and approaching these
recommendations as a collective package, however, has the potential to
maximize the benefits.

The Working Group recognizes that some of the concepts and thinking
contained in this document are not traditional, particularly the concepts
that managed trails can be means to positive ends and that outdoor
recreation is, in itself, an industry that depends on quality assets. It is the
hope of the Working Group that readers of this document recognize that
the trails of the past, and their associated problems, do not have to be
our future.

Passively tolerating and allowing recreation to occur as long as it is
not a problem is not the same as planning and managing it for desired
environmental, social, and economic outcomes. Acting constructively,
collaboratively, and intentionally towards a common trails vision is the
opportunity in front of us.



Taylor & Erica-Hamell Lookout, alltrails.com

INTRODUCTION
1.1 PURPOSE AND CONTEXT
1.2 GEOGRAPHIC SCOPE AND PLANNING CONNECTIONS
1.3 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

0 NN

TRAIL BENEFITS: A CASE FOR INVESTING IN THE REGION’S TRAILS

PLANNING CONTEXT
3.1 ENVIRONMENTAL VALUES
3.2 HISTORIC AND CULTURAL RESOURCE VALUES
3.3 LAND USE VALUES

TRAIL EXPERIENCES IN THE GRANDE CACHE REGION
4.1 TRAIL-BASED ACTIVITIES
4.2 SUPPLY OF TRAIL EXPERIENCES
4.3 TRAIL-BASED EVENTS
4.4 EXISTING TRAIL CONDITIONS
4.5 COMMON TRAIL ISSUES
4.6 SIGNAGE AND WAYFINDING

10

13
15
20
22

23
25
27
39
40
41
52

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Vi

5

6

7

4.7 TRAILHEADS, COMFORT AND CONVENIENCE AMENITIES 55

4.8 CAMPING AND FIXED ROOF ACCOMMODATIONS 57
4.9 VISITOR INFORMATION AND MARKETING 59
TRAIL TOURISM READINESS 61
THE FUTURE OF PUBLIC LAND TRAILS IN THE GRANDE CACHE
REGION 67
6.1 DESIRED OUTCOMES 68
6.2 THE GRANDE CACHE REGION’S UNIQUE SELLING
PROPOSITION AND TRAIL OFFERING 70
6.3 MARKETS OF GREATEST POTENTIAL Al
6.4 STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK 75
6.5 RECOMMENDED STRATEGIES AND ACTIONS 77
APPENDICES 117
APPENDIX A: WORKING GROUP TERMS OF REFERENCE 118
REFERENCES 135



Serge Martin-Kvass Flats Trail, alltrails.com

INTRODUCTION



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

11 PURPOSE AND CONTEXT

This document is intended to support and inform
planning processes that will help Grande Cache and the
surrounding area realize and benefit from a sustainable
trail system that uses modern best-practices.

Public Lands, parks, and recreation areas near
Grande Cache are very desirable destinations for
outdoor recreation. For decades, various linear
routes and Crown land trails across this area have
supported a wide diversity of outdoor recreation
activities including off-highway vehicle (OHV) use,
snowmobiling, hiking, equestrian, mountain biking,
snowshoeing, cross-country skiing, fishing, and
camping. Some of these routes have evolved from
historical and culturally significant routes throughout
the area that have been important to Indigenous and
Metis communities for centuries.

Many residents and visitors in our region know that
with a specific combination of skill, equipment,
navigational support, weather conditions, and good
fortune, it is possible to connect segments of existing
Crown land trail (hereafter referred to as trails) in ways
that enable access to spectacular scenery and a range of
experiences. These vary from front country experiences
near Grande Cache, to the true backcountry of Willmore
Wilderness and Kakwa Wildlands parks.

Most of the recreational trail activity in our region
is by outdoor enthusiasts who live and work in our
region. But we have seen glimpses of the area’s
broader appeal when we have welcomed the world
stage as the host of well-known Canadian Death
Race. Remarks of visitors about how surprisingly
beautiful the area is do not surprise residents who
have long-known this to be true.

The literal and figurative paths that have brought us
to this point in our outdoor recreation story have,
however, been somewhat unintentional and ad hoc.
Today's recreational interests and activities were not
contemplated or planned for and most of the routes
we use as trails today have evolved from previous
industrial exploration and development that was
not intended, built, or maintained for the purpose of
recreational use.

101

[

A trails experience, at its most
basic level, can be defined as the
ability for the visitor to participate
in their preferred activity, at their
preferred difficulty level, within
their preferred recreation setting
in their preferred natural region.



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

The reality that our trails were not made for what
they are being used for today is the primary driver
of significant risks and challenges to sustaining
recreational trail use across the Grande Cache area,
including environmental damage, wildlife and fish
disturbance, and human safety concerns. Without
efforts to align trail development and maintenance
with ecological and biological considerations
(including, but not limited to, caribou and native
trout recovery) as well as ensuring the sustainability,
safety, and suitability of trails for recreational users,
it is unlikely that trails will meet the values, needs,
and interests of Alberta Environment and Parks (AEP),
other partners, visitors, and local users.

Currently, the region’s trails are best thought of

as a basic framework of recreational connectivity.
Inspirational routes exist on maps and websites as
dotted lines like Beaverdam Road or between points
like Grande Mountain and Flood Mountain. When
combined with spectacularimages and stories of the
area, it takes little to capture the imaginations and
dreams of outdoor enthusiasts. However, the on-
ground reality of most area trails often falls short of
expectations when users encounter to deteriorating
trail conditions, navigation issues, and considerable
environmental and/or public safety concerns.

102

The region’s trails have tremendous potential to
become a highly desirable and sustainable collection
of routes that the region can proudly share with its
citizens and visitors, but to improve them to that
level will take collaboration, common direction, and
intentionality.

The vision and detailed concepts in this document
have been developed with the support of regional
and provincial contributions to serve as input and
potential direction for trail development in the area.
This document also includes a level of detail that
supports agile and pragmatic action to address the
considerable environmental liabilities, public safety
risks, and visitor experience opportunities related to
area trails that are within our grasp.



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

LANDS, LAND USES, AND PEOPLES ON THE LAND

The land base considered in this document forms
part of the past and present homeland of Indigenous
and Metis cultures. For outdoor recreation initiatives
in the area to be sustainable and successful, these
initiatives must respect, consider, and integrate with
cultural values and interests. Many examples exist
where recreation and tourism activity are actively
benefitting Indigenous and Metis cultures, and it is
hoped that this initiative can also be developed and
implemented with similar benefits.

Outdoor recreation interests and footprints will
continue to overlap with other land uses (e.g. forestry,
mining). With planning and foresight, there are
opportunities and actions that can be taken now to
improve how these interests can coexist and work
together to mitigate (and even eliminate) challenges
moving into the future. This initiative acknowledges
that some of the concepts and recommendations
contained in this document will require additional
consideration, including where trails, infrastructure,
and management approaches overlap with
dispositions, reservations, notations, Integrated
Resource Plans, Public Land Use Zones, Regional
Plans, and other regulatory instruments. This may also
include acquiring consent from existing dispositions
holders and consideration of land interests.

Lands and trails within existing Parks and Protected
Areas in the area attract and provide significant
recreation opportunities but are generally out of
scope of this document. The land and trails described
in this document refer to those falling under the
administration of the Public Lands Act and, generally,
within the scope of Alberta’s new Trails Act. This
includes public lands immediately adjacent to the
hamlet of Grande Cache.

103



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

TOURISM CONTEXT

Like other land-use and recreation planning initiatives
that involve public land, environmental values are
priority considerations in this document. Trails must
be sustainable and their presence on the land (and
their use) must not unduly impact the area’s ecology.
These imperatives shape and frame the concepts

and recommendations contained throughout this
document. A trait that distinguishes this document
from some other plans and initiatives is, however, that
this document not only presents outdoor recreation
as activities that will be allowed and tolerated. It also
considers outdoor recreation for its social benefits, its
need to be actively managed to be sustainable, and it
recognizes the potential of trails-based recreation to
be a significant economic driver for the area.

The scenic value and captivating geography of

the Grande Cache region are unique and valuable
economic assets. They are resources that few places
have, ones that people are increasingly interested

in, and ones that people will pay to see and enjoy. A
well-planned and implemented trail network, as many
communities around the globe with tremendous
scenic assets have shown, has the potential to activate
and regenerate sagging economies in ways that other
industries cannot, but only if it considers and balances
environmental and social values.

Grande Cache offers recreation resources and
opportunities similar to regions like the Bighorn
Backcountry to our south, but our area attracts fewer
people from major source markets like Edmonton and
Calgary. However, the popularity of outdoor recreation
is growing rapidly and visitors are being displaced

WHAT IS
TOURISM?

Tourism is the activities of
people travelling to, and
staying in places, outside of
their usual environment for
leisure, business, or other
purposes for not more than
one consecutive year.

WHO IS A
TOURIST?

Tourists are anyone who stays
one or more nights away from
home. Or anyone who spends
no nights away from home
but travels at least 40km one
way from their home to their
destination.

Statistics Canada

104

from crowded areas to the south in search of less busy
destinations. This will continue to intent people to
explore public lands in our region and bring economic
opportunity, but it will also increase risks to ecological
integrity, sensitive habitats, and species.

The strategies of Travel Alberta’s Bootstrap Plan,

a collective post-pandemic effort of the tourism
sector and the Government of Alberta to recover
the visitor economy, integrates seamlessly with the
recommendations of this document. Both recognize
the potential to grow nature-based, outdoor

and adventure tourism experiences and advance
Alberta’s position as a desirable destination for
visitors and residents. Our region holds significant
potential to support these efforts if wisely developed
and effectively managed.

Our area’s Crown Land trails, staging areas, and
associated infrastructure provides our residents with
basic access to highly desirable recreation assets.
From a tourism standpoint, however, many of these
sites and trails are not yet “market ready” to openly
invite visitation. This gap, when combined with
current use, is leading to environmental damage and
human safety risk.

That said, our Crown land trails have the potential

to become significant motivating assets for citizens
and visitors if developed and managed strategically.
This means identifying our target trail audiences and
providing sustainable opportunities for the recreation
and tourism we want to see here into the future.



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

INTENTIONALITY AND SUSTAINABILITY

Visitation and use of our area’s trails is growing
and, with it, so are the social and environmental
management challenges.

Littering, crowding, unauthorized camping and
structures, wildfire risks, public safety incidents,
wildlife displacement and harassment, watercourse
and fish habitat impacts, and vegetation impacts are
all increasing in frequency. Instead of attempting

to manage recreation only through access controls
(which may or may not result in desired change) and
curtail both the quality and quantity of recreation
opportunities, our opportunity is to manage trails
actively and intentionally in ways that improve
sustainability and user experience.

Rather than simply accepting where trails are located
and what occurs on them, intentional planning for
sustainable trails means identifying optimal trail
types, locations, networked connectivity, and the
types of experiences that desired users are looking
for, all the while thinking about how to mitigate
impacts and risks.

Following planning, successful implementation
means transitioning to a more actively managed
trails ecosystem with high-quality, well-designed,
appropriately placed, and maintained trails with
suitable visitor infrastructure and amenities. This
approach allows land managers to mitigate the
negative impacts of recreation and tourism on the
region’s diverse ecological, Indigenous, and Metis
values, as well as minimizing conflict with other
land uses.

Our region has long been an outdoor recreation
destination, but our collective efforts have not always
aligned and focused at strategic and tactical levels

to diversify and strengthen our visitor economy.
What if we established a vision for the region’s entire
trails ecosystem and worked toward implementing a
common set of priorities?

The vision and concepts of this initiative are intended
to serve as a comprehensive overarching guide to
proactively approach the region’s trails in a way

that addresses significant environmental and land
management matters, anticipates and influences
changes to recreation and tourism visitation, and
positions the region to sustain and capture economic
benefits from that visitation. It is rooted in the desire
to wisely offer a trails-based recreation and tourism
economy in ways that are systematic, sustainable and
ecologically-sound.

105

As such, this initiative:

« Provides an inventory, classification and
assessment of non-motorized, motorized, mixed-
use trails, trail experiences and associated trail
infrastructure and amenities.

- ldentifies and examines the environmental
values, and risks to those values, from trails
with considerations for development and / or
restoration.

- Examines and describes trail-based visitation
patterns.

- Identifies priority markets, market expectations
and assesses the region’s trail tourism market
readiness.

- Identifies priority visitor experience and
management issues that should be addressed.

« Suggests pragmatic strategies and actions that
should be taken to improve the quality and
sustainability of trails, enhance the management
of trail use, and strengthen the region’s trails
tourism economy.

- Provides a framework to improve cooperation
and coordination of the region’s trails ecosystem.

Although water trails and routes hold strong
recreational appeal and tourism potential, the
significant complexities and nuances of riparian
ecosystems are outside the scope of this initiative.
Water trails and routes are not considered in this
document.



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

1.2 GEOGRAPHIC SCOPE AND PLANNING
CONNECTIONS

As illustrated in Figure 1, the area considered in this
initiative focuses on the vacant public land to the
west, northwest and south of the hamlet of Grande
Cache between the Berland and Kakwa Rivers

(i.e. the public land). Trails within provincial Parks
and Protected Areas are not included, although
associated trail connections to these sites are.

It is acknowledged that several other initiatives are
ongoing and may affect the direction, strategies,
outcomes, and feasibility of this initiative.

Regionally, this includes a project for the Redrock Prairie
Creek Caribou herd ongoing in the areas adjacent to
Willmore Wilderness and Kakwa Wildlands Parks.

Provincially, Land-Use Framework initiatives,
including a current sub-regional planning initiative,
will provide greater support and direction to trails
planning across the region, particularly Crown lands
outside the hamlet of Grande Cache.

The information, data and recommendations in this
plan will inform the over-arching sub-regional plan
for this area regarding trails and trail use. It will also
consider recreation in alignment with environmental,
social, and economic outcomes. These plans are built
on a foundation of ecological and socio-economic
scientific assessments which support understanding

LEGEND

|__.iStudy Area
——Highway

Waterbody

@ Hamlet of Grande Cache |
Kakwa Wildland Provincial Park 1

Other Parks & Protected Areas

Grande Cache

how sub-regional plans fit within local and regional
land uses, values, and economies. Public, stakeholder,
and Indigenous engagement is part of this planning
process. The assessment and recommendations
captured within the Grande Cache area trails initiative
will provide valuable recreation information to be
considered in the broader sub-regional planning
processes that are underway. This will ensure there

is alignment both in the short and longer terms with
higher level planning processes, to enable sustainable
and desirable recreation opportunities that have been
considered with other land use and values.

106

Figure 1

Kilometres
20

Area Considered (Planning Area)



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

1.3 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Advancing the sustainability and quality of trails and
trails tourism will require significant collaboration.
This initiative was created under the guidance of
the Grande Cache Trails Working Group, facilitated
by Alberta Environment and Parks in partnership
with the Municipal District of Greenview. The
Working Group members represent a broad array
of trail-based recreation, Indigenous and Metis
values, tourism, and other land-use interests in the
region’s trails ecosystem. This group generously
shared their ideas, values, uses, concerns, and future
vision. Publicly available data from commonly used
smartphone applications, including Trail Forks and
All Trails, was also use to inform this document.

WHAT WE HEARD

Many insightful ideas and suggestions were shared
through the initiative’s engagement process, which
included individual interviews and participatory
online mapping sessions, facilitated group workshops,
expert input from AEP biologists and lands specialists,
and iterative reviews of this document.

Through the engagement, it became clear that trails
are seen to be invaluable contributors to the quality
of life of residents and the culture of Grande Cache.
It was also clear that there is support to cautiously
pursue the development of a strong trails tourism
economy that targets specific types of recreational
users, provided that environmental and social risks
to sustainability and visitor experience are mitigated.

Specifically, we heard that we should:

+ Deliberately target trail tourism markets seeking
low-impact backcountry experiences.

- Offer and enable relatively rustic, but high-quality
outdoor opportunities.

« Target users who have the technical skills
required to enjoy the region’s trails safely (i.e.
navigational skills, backcountry camping).

- Target citizen and visitors who share the same
passion, respect, and stewardship ethic for
the natural environment as those in Grande
Cache and surrounding Indigenous and Metis
communities.

The following priorities thus emerged as matters to
address in this initiative:

« Enhance the quality and sustainability of trails
and their associated infrastructure (e.g. bridges).
This may include design and construction work
to improve trail safety, ecological sustainability,
user experience and social benefits, as well as
active decommissioning and reclamation of
unsuitable trails.

+ Provide a diversity of non-motorized and mixed-
used trail experiences.

« Connect trails to each other, to Grande Cache, and
to visitor services (including considerations for
establishing looped trail experiences) where they
are ecologically, socially, and financially feasible.

107

Develop “signature” trail experiences that will
motivate travel to the region from broader
markets.

Inspire, activate, and encourage collaboration,
coordination, and capacity within the region’s
trail “ecosystem”, including elected officials,
tourism and destination marketing organizations,
business and cultural organizations, and citizens
in ways that helps attract visitors and improve
their experiences.

Ensure visitors have access to trail-friendly
accommodations, amenities, and services in
Grande Cache.

Provide memorable first impressions through
improved trailheads and staging/parking areas,
with an understanding however that existing
Parks and Protected Aras are out of scope (i.e.,
Sulphur Gates PRA).

Ensure consistent and well-designed signage is
in place for visitors (i.e. AEP signage standards),
with efforts to reduce “sign pollution” across the
region.

Improve and sustain the on-ground management
of trails and trail use, including fulsome
consideration of future needs.

Encourage and facilitate improvements to trip
planning tools and marketing.



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

-

WHAT IS A TRAIL?

A “trail” is type of recreation infrastructure that is purposefully designed,
constructed, and used to facilitate travel for one or more recreation or

tourism activities.

To be a recognized trail, the route must be:

Approved by the landowner / manager

Mapped

Marked (signage)

Actively managed and maintained

If one or more of the above criteria are missing, the route is not a trail, it is

“linear access”.

Trail Development Guidelines for Public Lands in Alberta

108

LIMITATIONS

Efforts were made to ensure that the broad array

of activity interests in the area were represented

by community members on the project Working
Group. However, as a small community whose
recreational interests are not homogenous in

their composition or their organization (e.g. some
interests are formally organized, while others

are not), some knowledgeable participants that
represented these activity interests were not formally
affiliated with regional or provincial activity-specific
recreation organizations. Opportunity exists for
deeper engagement of formal provincial recreation
organizations in future planning.



Ben Ouellet-Cairn Mountain, alltrails.com

TRAIL BENEFITS: A CASE FOR INVESTING IN
THE REGION'S TRAILS



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

Successes in other jurisdictions demonstrate that
trails can be drivers of positive economic, social,
and environmental change, particularly for smaller,
rural communities like Grande Cache. If planned,
developed, and maintained, trails and trails tourism
can have a broad range of benefits.

We also acknowledge that identifying and protecting
historically and culturally significant trails can be a
part of reconciliation processes with Indigenous and
Metis communities. However, we acknowledge that
this process encompasses much more than what this
process has included. As such, there may be need for
future efforts to engage with Indigenous and Metis
communities in trail identification, planning and
management to recognize and secure these values.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Appropriate and sustainable trails can:

Function as a powerful, system-level land management
tools to influence how and where human disturbance
and impact occurs on the landscape (e.g., attract visitors
to areas where they are desired and / or by routing
visitors out of, off of, or away from sensitive areas or
wildlife habitat).

Solve specific environmental issues (e.g. erosion,
sedimentation, invasive species transfer) when tactically
implemented with proven design and engineering
approaches.

Foster and enhance the rationale for conservation and
preservation of natural assets by increasing the social
and economic benefits that rely on the integrity these
assets (i.e., attracting sustainable and responsible
visitation).

Nurture and grow a strong culture of conservation,
appreciation, and stewardship as residents and visitors
learn about and appreciate the wildlife, ecosystems, and
ecosystem processes through use of the trail network.

COMMUNITY, SOCIAL, AND
CULTURAL

Appropriate and sustainable trails can:

Help to preserve community heritage as places where
stories can be shared and be woven into memorable
trail experience as foundational assets.

Elevate resident’s awareness and pride in the
community through the sharing of amenities with
visitors and the facilitation of quality visitor experiences.
Provide the setting for community events and for
formative family experiences and memories.

Attract, retain, and even help re-populate communities
with residents and skilled workers as new employment
becomes available and the potential for an outdoor
recreation lifestyle attracts new residents.

Stimulate investment in community infrastructure,
amenities and facilities that benefit both residents and
visitors alike.

Help appropriately showcase and/or protect
Indigenous values and heritage.

QUALITY OF LIFE AND
WELL-BEING

Appropriate and sustainable trails can:

Encourage greater physical activity and improve
physical health.

Improve mental health.

Enhance an individuals’ sense of achievement,
self-esteem, and confidence.

110

ECONOMIC BENEFITS

Appropriate and sustainable trails can:

Help diversify local economies (particularly where high
reliance on other industries exists and where limited
efforts have been made to activate existing outdoor
recreation potential).

Foster conditions where new and existing enterprises
can grow and create potential for additional direct and
indirect employment as a trails-based visitor economy is
established.

Stimulate increased visitor spending, especially in rural
areas with few alternatives.

Create potential for greater local and provincial taxation
revenues.

Be managed in ways that does not deplete or exhaust
associated resources.

1"



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

Communities near quality outdoor
recreation attract new residents and
can have higher in-migration rates than
other communities that do not have
quality outdoor recreation opportunities.

Property values increase the closer

they are to quality outdoor recreation
opportunities. Visitor spending and

high property taxes increase tax revenues
for all levels of government.

outdoors spend money on lodging, & R W
i \s

restaurants, and other services,

creating jobs and putting money "

into the community.Investments in

outdoor infrastructure will attract visitors

from beyond Alberta who spend significantly

more per trip than Albertans. W

Visitors who come to enjoy the 2 l )
| ‘ J

Access to quality outdoor

recreation improves the Communities with quality nearby

physical and mental health . * outdoor recreation attract retirees

of residents and reduces who are seeking an active outdoor

associated health lifestyles. These retirees spend their

care costs. Hn wealth in these communities which
O o o boost the local economy.

Easy access to quality outdoor
recreation creates a high quality
Companies that make outdoor of life which attracts skilled workers,
equipment tend to locate in places employers and businesses.
with outdoor amenities, providing
jobs and investment in the community.

Restaurants, grocery stores, gear
stores, and other local retailers
benefit from visitors and new
residents who are attracted to the
communities because of nearby
outdoor recreation opportunities.




Winston Delorme-Kvass Flats Trail, alltrails.com

PLANNING CONTEXT

13



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

In addition to recreation and tourism, public lands

in our region are managed for a variety of purposes
including conservation of ecologically significant

areas, provision of ecosystem services, protection of
Indigenous and historic resource values, and to support
responsible development of natural resources.

In 2020, the Government of Alberta developed a
new vision for the management of provincial Crown
Land'. Known as the Alberta Crown Land Vision,
this new policy was established to guide a modern
approach to managing provincial Crown land to
ensure the needs of communities, Indigenous
Peoples, and the outdoor recreation economy are
met without compromising conservation values.
One of the key priorities in the vision is to “improve
outdoor recreation management across all Crown
lands to ensure there is a range of sustainable
recreation opportunities for Albertans into the
future”.

The Alberta Crown Land Vision also signaled the
government’s intention to “develop (a) trails act
and fee framework to improve outdoor recreation
experiences”. Most of Alberta’s Trails Act came into
force in February 2022, with the remaining coming
into force in May 2022. Regulation, policy, and

procedures to support implementation of this act are

still in development, but they have the potential to
significantly alter, advance, and streamline how trails
are managed and operated across Alberta.

14

The development and management of public land
trails and trail infrastructure, like other land uses,
must be undertaken in accordance with other
established provincial and federal legislation,
regulations, policies, and plans. Key statutes
influencing trails development and management
include Alberta’s:

« Public Lands Act and Public Land Administration
Regulation

« Land Stewardship Act

+ Water Act

+ Wildlife Act

- Fisheries Act (Alberta)

« Fisheries Act (Federal)

« Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act
+ Species at Risk Act

« Historical Resources Act

« Provincial Parks Act

« Trails Act

« Wilderness Areas, Ecological Reserves, Natural
Areas and Heritage Rangelands Act

« Willmore Wilderness Park Act

113

Other policies and plans that influence trail
development, recreation management, and tourism
provincially and across the region include:

« Alberta’s Land Use Framework (2008)

» Upper Smokey Sub-Regional Plan (under
development)

+ Alberta’s Bootstrap Plan: Supporting the Tourism
Industry (as well as policy under development
to support Travel Alberta’s newly expanded
mandate into economic and destination
development)

- Integrated Resource Plan & Policy for Resource
Management of the Eastern Slopes

« Agreement for the Conservation and Recovery
of the Woodland Caribou in Alberta & Caribou
Recovery Plans; Upper Smoky Sub-Regional
Caribou Recovery Plan (in development);
Berland Sub-regional Caribou Recovery Plan (in
development)

« MD of Greenview Municipal Development Plan
and Strategic Plan

« Alberta’s Plan for Parks (expired, but still
providing strategic guidance) as well as Alberta
Parks’ new Master Development Planning process



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

Carly Schoorlemmer-Muskeg Falls, alltrails.com

The number of locations in the
region where public land trails
cross fish bearing streams.

Many of these crossings have not
been designed to mitigate impacts
for fish and water quality.

3.1 ENVIRONMENTAL VALUES

Many environmentally significant terrestrial and aquatic
areas in the region provide important habitat for a wide
diversity of plant and wildlife species such as:

+ Woodland Caribou

+ Grizzly Bear

+ Mountain Goats

« Bighorn Sheep

- Native trout and other fish species
+ Barred Owl

« Migratory birds

+ Moose, elk, and other wildlife species, including
invertebrates

+ Plants of the Rocky Mountain and Foothills natural
regions

As illustrated in the following figures (Figure 2 to
Figure 4), trails overlap and intersect with many of the
region’s most ecologically significant areas and with
other important fish and wildlife habitat, including
species at risk such as woodland caribou, bull trout,
grizzly bear, and others.

Poorly planned, designed, constructed, and/or
managed trails and trail infrastructure can lead to a
wide range of undesirable impacts on the region’s
wildlife, their habitat, and ecosystem services that our
public lands provide. Uninformed, uncaring, unskilled,
and irresponsible visitor behaviours exacerbate these
undesirable environmental impacts.

114

Some of the most common and concerning recreation
impacts observed in the region include:

- Wildlife disturbance and displacement (e.g.
caribou, grizzly bear, sheep, goats) due to human
presence and noise (both on trails and off trails).

- Wildlife harassment by approaching visitors.

« Fish and wildlife mortality resulting from
access and from predation made possible by
easier predator movement on trails and linear
disturbance (e.g. wolf movement through caribou
habitat on packed snowmobile trails).

- Human wildlife conflicts (e.g. wildlife attractants,
surprising wildlife).

- Vegetation damage, removal and trampling from
unsanctioned activities (e.g. unsanctioned trail
construction, campfires, off-trail travel), especially
in sensitive alpine and riparian areas.

« Soil compaction and erosion from poorly situated
or maintained trails, off-trail travel, and random
camping.

+ Sediment loading in fish bearing watercourses and
important spawning areas caused by inappropriate
watercourse crossings and trail erosion.

« Water contamination (e.g. lubricants, human waste).

- Introduction and transport of invasive plant and
aquatic species.

+ Introduction and spread of disease (e.g. from
domestic animals).

- Wildfire risk due to inappropriate fire placement,
attendance, and extinguishment/abandonment.

15



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

Some of the most concerning and impactful visitor

conduct observed in the region includes:

16

Off-trail travel.

Using OHVs in watercourses.

Approaching wildlife for photographs.
Feeding wildlife.

Mud-bogging.

Unauthorized trail and campsite construction.

Leaving wildlife attractants accessible.

Inappropriate human waste and trash disposal.

Unsafe campfire practices (e.g. poorly located fire

locations, failure to fully extinguish fires).

Unlawful and/or modified OHV exhaust systems.

Failure to clean OHV'’s, waders, boats and other
equipment to remove invasive species prior to
arrival in area.

Not using of weed-free equestrian feed.

Poorly prepared and equipped visitors (e.g. lack
of appropriate skills, safety equipment, supplies,
communication, trip plans etc.).

115

Quality, sustainable trails are capable of reducing
undesirable recreation impacts. As we consider
planning and investing in regional trails and
attracting more visitors, we must ensure that our
trails are properly situated, designed, constructed,
restored, rehabilitated, and maintained properly in
order to ensure that the impacts of recreation on our
environmental values are minimized.

We must also actively implement visitor
management strategies that foster a stewardship
ethic and responsible use when enjoying our trail
system. In some cases, we must also consider where
existing trails may be unsustainable and how we will
reclaim these trails to restore the landscape.



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

| |_| | Kilometres

0 5 10 20

LEGEND

|:iStudy Area
—— Highway
@ Hamlet of Grande Cache
Waterbody
Kakwa Wildland Provincial Park
Other Parks & Protected Areas
—— Public Land Trails
Trail (Outside Planning Area)

a Trail & Fish Bearing Stream Crossing

Grande Cache

BuII Trout Spawning Areas Determined
Z From Radio Telemetry Data (1996/97)

Alberta Conservation Information
Management System (ACIMS)(Non-
Sensitive Element Occurrences)

Fish Bearing Streams (FWMIS)

Figure 2 Fish Bearing Streams & Bull Trout Spawning Areas

116 17



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

| |_| |Ki|ometres

0 5 10 20

LEGEND

i___iStudy Area
——Highway
@® Hamlet of Grande Cache
Waterbody
Kakwa Wildland Provincial Park
Other Parks & Protected Areas
—— Public Land Trails @
Trail (Outside Planning Area)

- Wetland

Environmentally Significant Area CRyecieacic

Figure 3 Wetlands & Environmentally Significant Areas

18 117



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

| Kilometres
20

LEGEND

|___iStudy Area
—— Highway
@ Hamlet of Grande Cache
Waterbody
Kakwa Wildland Provincial Park
Other Parks & Protected Areas

—— Public Land Trails

)

/A Key Wildlife & Biodiversity Zones /
7

! . [} . ! = I = | ’ _5_‘f .\..\ ; / #
/A Caribou Range CladeiCatlc L\h £L4 //\
Mountain Goat & Sheep Area i 75 vy /// / //
! - ‘ (Al LA S L L LS ALL S Lo |_ : //\
Note: Entire area is a Grizzly Bear Zone ¥ | /'J/ ;

Figure 4 Key Wildlife Range & Zones

118 19



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

3.2 HISTORIC AND CULTURAL RESOURCE VALUES

The region holds significant historic resource and
cultural values that must be considered in planning
and development of trails.

A historic resource is any work of nature or of humans
that is primarily of value for its palaeontological,
archaeological, prehistoric, historic, cultural, natural,
scientific, or esthetic interest including, but not limited
to, a palaeontological, archaeological, prehistoric,
historic, or natural site, structure, or object?.

Historic resources include archaeological sites,
palaeontological sites, Indigenous traditional use
sites of a historic resource nature (e.g. burials,
ceremonial sites, etc.) and historic structures.

Table 1.

HRV by Category

Historic Resource Value by Category

Total Area
(LE))

1,104.2

1,104.2

% of Study
Area

3.1%

3.1%

% f 99.3 0.3%
s 1,088.9 3.0%
4 22,456.6 62.2%
% f 326.3 0.9%
@/f %g;& 420.0 1.2%
(//‘N ;{D’} @ 323 0.1%
@;‘} 20,645.9 57.2%
{D}@ ﬁ 82.5 0.2%

119

Total Area % of Study

HRV by Category (ha) Area
DY
b 8 G 165.3 0.5%
“DVQ eﬁo °
G 784.4 2.2%

11,337.1 31.4%

2,537.1 7.0%
@/ f &S 4,348.1 12.0%
@po 4,451.8 12.3%
Grand Total 36,086.03 100.0%

LEGEND

C/f - archaeological
@ - palaeontological

é/\&— cultural
p

ﬁ - historic period



GRANDE CACHE TRAIL PLANNING INITIATIVE: A VISION FOR TRAILS ON PUBLIC LANDS

Historic resource values are documented within the
province’s Listing of Historic Resources. As shown

in Figure 5, many areas in the region are known

to contain, or have been identified as having the
potential to contain, a historic resource. As shown in
Table 1, the region contains Historic Resource Values:

« HVR 1 - World Heritage Site or Provincial Historic
Resource (3.1% of study area)

« HRV 3 - Sites containing a significant historic
resource that likely requires avoidance (3.3% of
study area)

- HRV 4 - Sites containing a significant historic
resource that may require avoidance (62% of
study area)

« HRV 5 - Sites with a high potential to contain a
historic resource (31.4% of study area)

Trail development and visitation have the potential
to negatively impact historic resources (e.g. damage,
removal, theft, defacement etc.).

In some cases, trail development and visitation can
also be a powerful and effective way of recognizing
and communicating the proud and storied histories
of the Indigenous and Metis peoples who have called
this area their home for generations.

Although not inventoried as part of this initiative,
additional contemporary Indigenous values must
also be considered.

With appropriate engagement and support of the
Aseniwuche Winewak Nation and Mountain M